
CCOC CORPORATION MEETING 
June 6, 2022 



 

 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 
 

June 6, 2022 
Meeting: Immediately following the 3:00 PM, Eastern Executive Council Meeting 

Rosen Shingle Creek, Orlando (Sebastian Room) 
WebEx Link: https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m6af1a4b8e2b7945104a692b97d608e70 

Meeting Code: 2319 716 1299, Password: CCOC 
Conference Call: 1-866-469-3239, Access Code: 2319 716 1299 

 
1) Call to Order, Introduction, and Approval of Agenda .....................Hon. JD Peacock 

2) Invocation .........................................................................................Hon. John Crawford 

3) Roll Call ............................................................................................Hon. Tiffany Russell 

4) Approve Minutes from 2021 Annual Corporation Meeting ..........Hon. Tiffany Russell 

5) Treasurer’s Report ...........................................................................Hon. Tiffany Russell 
i) Annual Financial Statements for CFY 2020-21 

ii) Report on CCOC Office Budget for CFY 2021-22 through April 

iii) Proposed Corporation Budget for CFY 2022-23 and Workplan 

6) Report from the Chair ......................................................................Hon. JD Peacock 

i) Past Year’s Accomplishments 

7) Tentative Council Meeting Dates for CFY 2022-23 ......................John Dew 

8) Other Business 

 
Council Organizational Session for the Swearing in of Council Members 

 
1) Swearing in of Newly Elected Council Members ...........................Hon. JD Peacock 

2) Election of CCOC Executive Committee Board ..............................Rob Boyd 

a. Only Council Members can nominate and vote on election of Executive 
Committee 

https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m6af1a4b8e2b7945104a692b97d608e70


 

 

CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 
June 28, 2021 

Immediately following the 3 PM Executive Council Meeting 
In person at the Hilton St. Petersburg Bayfront & Via WebEx 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER, INTRODUCTION AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The June 28, 2021, Annual Meeting of the Corporation of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 
Corporation (CCOC) was called to order at 5:05 p.m., EDT by the CCOC Executive Council Chair JD 
Peacock. He asked Clerk John Crawford to provide an invocation. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Chair Peacock asked if there was anyone that wanted to revise the posted agenda. Noting that there 
were no comments he replied that the agenda as presented would be considered approved. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
CCOC Executive Council Chair JD Peacock asked CCOC staff member Marleni Bruner to call Roll Call. 
Marleni Bruner called Roll Call in alphabetical county order. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Chair Peacock noted that the minutes are in the meeting packet. He pointed out that we needed to 
revise the minutes to indicate that Clerk Peacock, and not Clerk Butterfield asked Secretary Russell to 
call the role at the 2020 meeting. Mr. Dew noted a spelling error on the last page where we need to 
change the word “he” to “we.” Chair Peacock asked if anyone else had revisions. There being none, 
Clerk Ken Burke made a motion to approve the minutes as amended. Seconded by Clerk Roth. A vote 
was taken, and the minutes were approved unanimously. 

 
TREASURER’S AND FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
Clerk Burke noted that most Clerks were present at the previous meeting of the Executive 
Council Committee and therefore he made a motion to approve all of the items listed under 
the Treasurer’s report. Clerk Butterfield seconded the motion. Therefore, having presented 
the Treasurer’s Report at that previous meeting Chair Peacock asked members if there were 
any questions. Hearing none, Chair Peacock called for the question. The report was 
approved as presented with one dissenting vote. 

 

3



 

 

CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING MINUTES – 6/24/21 

CHAIR’S REPORT 
 

Chair Peacock reported on the Pandemic Response concerns. He believes there is a brighter future 
for funding. The collaboration between the Corporation and the Association helped all our Legislative 
efforts. Furthermore, he believes we have built a relationship with the Legislative staffers and 
Governor’s office staffers which proved a positive result this year. The CCOC got a critical piece for 
stability, funding that only those who are dealing with the Pandemic received. OSCA got their Pandemic 
recovery plan only they have to pay for it themselves out of their own Trust Fund. CCOC received a 
general revenue appropriation. The CCOC was able to roll over the unspent $2.5 million dollars of 
general revenue for jury costs to the upcoming year to help Clerks get caught back up. The ability to 
go to the Reserve and to have a resource to get us through a bad spot on the road is a big deal. A lot 
of things came together this year. 
 
Chair Peacock thanked all who worked hard through the middle of the night working to get us funding 
and stability. That was a huge, big deal in these difficult times. We have a great staff working 
relationship with all the different sub-committees. There is a ton of work that goes on with these 
committees. This concludes the Chair’s report. 
 

WORKPLAN AND TENTATIVE COUNCIL MEETING DATES WORKPLAN FOR CFY 2021-2022 
 

Chairman Peacock reported that the workplan was adopted by the Council at its prior meeting. It lays 
out a goal for the different committees. The biggest component is a Data Management Solution for 
the Corporation. Clerk Moore Russell made a motion to adopt the workplan and it was seconded by 
Clerk Smith. Chair Peacock asked if there were any questions. Hearing none the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Chair Peacock noted the tentative calendar was presented at the earlier meeting and was approved 
by the Council. He asked if anyone had questions and they did not.  
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Chair Peacock he wanted to ensure that before this meeting ended, there was a platform for 
anybody in the room whether they be Clerk, whether they be a Staff member, or the public to express 
ideas and/or concerns. Chair Peacock opened the floor to anybody in the room or on the call to voice 
their thoughts. Hearing none, the meeting was adjourned at 5:25 PM. 

4



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
DATE:    June 6, 2022 
SUBJECT:   Treasurer’s Report 
CORPORATION ACTION: Accept CFY 2020-21 Financial Statements; Accept CFY 2021-22 

Budget Update; Approve Proposed CFY 2022-23 Office Budget, 
Approve CFY 2022-23 Work Plan 

 
 
OVERVIEW:  
Each Executive Council meeting the CCOC Treasurer provides an update on the CCOC Office 
expenditures compared to the approved budget. Annually, the Treasurer is responsible for 
reporting on the Corporation annual Financial Statements when received and making a 
recommendation to the Council for the Corporation Office budget for the next county fiscal year. 
 
STATUS: 

a. CCOC Office Financial Statements for the year ending September 30, 2021. The audit 
firm of Law, Redd, Crona & Munroe has submitted a draft report for review with this 
meeting (Attachment 1). No major changes are expected. The final report will be posted 
to the CCOC website. 

b. CFY 2021-22 Office Budget – Through seven months of the CFY the office has only 
expended 52% of the annual budget. While we expect to under-expend in our overall 
budget for the year, we will have one area of over-expenditure from the original 
approved budget category. The Council in June 2022 approved a budget of $320,000 
for educational services; however, in December of that year a contract for educational 
services was approved for $397,200. This is not an issue as we can decrease budget 
authority in other areas to handle the increased expenditures in the educational 
services area. See Attachment 2 

c. CFY 2022-23 Office Budget – Requesting the budget authority be increased by 
$77,050.14 (Attachment 3). This is to mainly handle the $77,200 increase for 
educational services. Within the budget, we request an increase in salary for all 
employees by the 5.38% increase approved by the Legislature for state workers. The 
increase impact to the budget will be offset by a decrease in other budget areas.  
 
The CFY 2022-23 Work Plan is also attached for review (Attachment 4). 

 

5



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 – TREASURER’S REPORT 

CORPORATION ACTION: 
1. Accept reports for CFY 2020-21 Financial Statements 
2. Receive CFY 2021-22 updated budget 
3. Approve CFY 2022-23 office budget request 
4. Approve CFY 2022-23 Work Plan 

 
 
LEAD STAFF:  John Dew, CCOC Executive Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CFY 20-21 Annual Finance Governance Letter and Draft Report  
2. CCOC Office Budget Report for CFY 2021-22 through April 2022 
3. CCOC Office Budget Request for CFY 2022-23. 
4. Proposed CFY 2022-23 Work Plan 

6



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

7



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

8



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

9



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

10



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

11



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

12



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

13



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

14



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

15



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

16



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

17



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

18



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

19



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

20



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

21



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

22



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

23



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

24



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

25



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

26



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

27



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

28



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

29



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

30



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

31



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

32



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

33



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

34



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

35



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

36



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

37



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

38



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

39



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

40



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

41



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

42



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

43



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

44



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

45



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

46



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

47



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

48



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

49



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

50



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

51



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

52



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

53



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

54



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

55



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

56



Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 2

57



DRAFT

Budget Category Budget Category

Amount Amount

$861,715.00 CCOC STAFF:* 898,565.14$     

$145,508.00 Executive Director $153,336.63

$101,598.00 Deputy Executive Director $107,064.98

$83,640.00 Budget and Communications Director $89,003.91

$72,177.00 Performance, Policy, and Education Director $79,103.54

$50,201.00 Actuarial and Performance Analyst $52,902.61

$37,707.00 Budget Manager I $40,160.28

$40,563.00 Data Quality Officer $44,843.53

$33,990.00 Office Manager $35,818.66

$75,000.00 Internal Revenue(Corporation Responsibility) $75,000.00

$221,331.00 Retirement, Benefits, Workers' Comp and Other* $221,331.00

OPS STAFF: $34,000.00 OPS STAFF: $34,000.00

GENERAL EXPENSES: $85,200.00 GENERAL EXPENSES: $85,200.00

Rent (including Utilities) $45,200.00 Rent (including Utilities) $45,200.00

Communications (+ Internet and Phone) $5,000.00 Communications (+ Internet and Phone) $5,000.00

Equipment, Supplies and Other $35,000.00 Equipment, Supplies and Other $35,000.00

TRAVEL: $60,400.00 TRAVEL: $60,400.00

STAFF TRAINING: $10,000.00 STAFF TRAINING: $10,000.00

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $330,563.00 CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $293,563.00

General Counsel $111,000.00 General Counsel** $74,000.00

FY 20-21 Survey, Reporting, and Other Services $203,563.00 FY 21-22 Survey, Reporting, and Other Services $203,563.00

Audit Services $16,000.00 Audit Services $16,000.00

EDUCATION SERVICES: $320,000.00 EDUCATION SERVICES:*** $397,200.00

TOTALS: $1,701,878.00 TOTALS:**** $1,778,928.14

* Included in these expenses are dollars to provide  employees a 5.38% raise to match state employees' raises. Increase of $32,695.04.

**As CCOC Members and staff gain increased knowledge there is less dependancy on General Counsel.  Decrease in budget of $37,000.

***Council approved an Education Contract with the FCCC which is $77,200 more annually.

****Budget Increase over current year of $77,050.14   Able to absorb salary increases within previous year's budget but not education contract increase.

Executive Director

CCOC Budget County Fiscal Year 2021-2022 CCOC Budget Request County Fiscal Year 2022-2023

(October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022)

CCOC STAFF:   

(October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023)

Budget Manager I

Office Manager

Internal Revenue(Corporation Responsibility)

Retirement, Benefits, Workers' Comp and Other

Deputy Executive Director

Budget and Communications Director

Senior Budget Manager

Budget Manager I

Budget Manager I

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 3

58



CFY 2022-23 CCOC WORK PLAN – DRAFT 

The Plan of Operations for the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (CCOC) requires 
the Corporation to adopt a program work plan for each fiscal year as presented by the 
Executive Director and recommended by the Council. 

CCOC's Mission, Vision, and Guiding Principles supply strategic direction to the Executive 
Director in formulating the work plan. These values are:  

Our Mission: To provide world-class service in Budget Administration, Performance 
Enhancement, Financial Analysis, Legislative Review, and Technical Strategies for all 
67 Clerks of Court. 

Our Vision: "Excellence in Clerks of Court Budget Administration." 

Our Guiding Principles:  
To be the Source for valid, accurate, complete performance and financial reports 
To Collaborate with justice partners to meet our mutual needs 
To Protect the integrity of performance and financial information 
To be Proactive in leveraging current technology and in advancing new technology 

DRAFT CCOC Workplan: The Executive Director presents the following priorities to the 
Executive Council and the Corporation members for CFY 2022-23. These priorities are 
contingent on the Executive Council's leadership and direction, legislative actions, and other 
factors. As part of the CFY 2022-23 work plan, CCOC staff will:  

1. Develop a guardianship database for use in judicial guardianship proceedings.

2. Continue to provide professional support to the clerks, Legislature, and other
entities seeking information related to the clerks' budgets and performance.

3. Develop policy and budgetary recommendations to the Legislature to diversify clerk
revenue streams and continue working toward stable funding solutions.

4. Collaborate with the Florida Court Clerks & Comptrollers (FCCC) leadership team
seeking joint solutions to help resolve clerks' issues and working with the
Legislature.

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 4

59



CFY 2022-23 CCOC WORK PLAN – DRAFT 

5. Provide workload relief to clerks by streamlining reporting requirements while
collecting necessary data to fulfill statutory duties and measure performance.
a. Develop a strategic solution for data collection, analysis, and reporting needs.
b. Evaluate the efficacy of the current reports.
c. Explore the possibility of discontinuing reports that no longer have value and

reducing the frequency of submissions.
d. Continue efforts to improve how clerks send reports to CCOC.
e. Explore using the Clerks' Comprehensive Case Information System (CCIS) to

reduce the number of manual entries clerks must make when reporting
outputs.

6. Continue to work with clerks on verifying and documenting the clerks' workload.
a. Review case weights and performance measures.
b. Recommend changes in case weights and performance measures to the

Performance Improvement and Efficiencies (PIE) Committee.

7. Seek to expand the use of the E-Notify text and email reminder platform, which
currently provides court event reminders.

8. Implement legislative changes to:
a. Develop a formula to estimate the total cost of clerk support for circuit and

county judges statewide.
b. Submit funding recommendations to the Legislature to reimburse costs related

to additional trial court judgeships and involuntary commitment fees.
c. Ensure minimum payment criteria for uniform payment plans, and allow the

clerks to review property records when determining the indigency status of an
applicant.

9. Develop a long-range 5-year strategic plan for the Corporation.
a. Implement strategic human resource management principles to develop staff,

retain staff, and ensure continuity of operations.
b. Develop a school-to-career pipeline program to secure future talent.
c. Increase the CCOC presence on social media to help educate the public and

policymakers on the importance of an adequately funded clerk system.

10. Continue reviewing all current CCOC Policies and Procedures.

11. Increase training opportunities and resources for clerks and staff.

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 4

60



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
DATE:    June 6, 2022 
SUBJECT:   Tentative EC Meeting Schedule for 22-23 Year 
CORPORATION ACTION: Informational only 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  

Tentative Council Meeting Dates 
 
The CCOC Plan of Operation in Section 1.5 requires that at the annual corporation meeting the 
Council shall establish a schedule of all regular meetings for the coming year. Historically, the 
CCOC has attempted to arrange all Council meetings with the FCCC training schedule to make it 
more convenient for Clerks and staff to attend meetings. Therefore, the Council usually provides 
a list of tentative meeting dates based on the FCCC calendar. 
 
We contacted the FCCC, and they will be providing us a tentative calendar to help us coordinate 
the quarterly EC meetings. Below are the potential meeting dates which could be subject to 
change. 
 
July-September 2022 – TBD; the Executive Council will determine what dates to meet during this 
time to receive recommendations from the Budget Committee to approve Clerk’s budgets. This will 
not be in conjunction with a FCCC Conference.  
 
November 1, 2022 – FCCC Fall Conference; Executive Council Meeting; Location: Destin 
 
Winter Conference – Early 2023 – This conference is held virtually, and the Association is still 
finalizing the dates.  
 
June 5, 2023 – FCCC Summer Conference; Executive Council Meeting; To be held at Sawgrass in 
Ponte Vedra Beach.  
 
CORPORATION ACTION: Informational only 
 
LEAD STAFF: John Dew, CCOC Executive Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 

61


	0 Packet Cover 060622
	1 AGENDA Corporation Meeting 060622
	4 June 28 2021 Draft Annual Corp Meeting Minutes
	5 MEMO Treasurer's Report
	5.1 Attachment 1 CCOC DRAFT Governance Letter & AFS
	5.2 Approved and Signed Reconciliation
	5.3 CCOC 22-23 Proposed Budget
	5.4 CCOC 22-23 Workplan
	7 Memo on Tentative EC Meetings for 21-22



